

K-12 Strong Workforce Program

Section 88821 of the Education Code is amended to read:

88821. (a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(1) California's economic competitiveness is fueled, in part, by the strength of its regional economies and its skilled workforce.

(2) Upward social and economic mobility helps keep the state's economy diversified and vibrant. (3) The attainment of industry-valued "middle skill credentials" serves as a gateway for a large and diverse number of careers in the state's economy.

(4) California's local educational agencies, community college districts, interested public fouryear universities, local workforce development boards, economic development and industry leaders, and local civic representatives should collaboratively work together to inform the offerings of courses, programs, pathways, and workforce development opportunities that enable students to access the current and future job market and further social and economic mobility.

(b) The Strong Workforce Program is hereby established as a K-14 state education, economic, and workforce development initiative for the purpose of expanding the availability of ~~quality community college~~ high-quality, industry-valued career technical education and workforce development courses, programs, pathways, credentials, certificates, and degrees.

(c) To facilitate program coordination and alignment with other workforce training, education, and employment services in the state, the Strong Workforce Program shall operate in a manner that complies with the California Strategic Workforce Development Plan, required pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128), and expand upon existing consortia infrastructure.

(d) To avoid duplication of effort, activities funded under the Strong Workforce Program shall be informed by, aligned with, and expand upon the activities of existing workforce and education regional partnerships, including those partnership activities that pertain to regional planning efforts established pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128), adult education block grant consortia, and other K-12 career technical education programs.

(e) All of the following guiding principles shall apply to each consortium participating in the Strong Workforce Program:

(1) AAny community college district and local educational agency participating in the consortium shall ensure that its ~~community college~~ career technical education and workforce development courses, credentials, certificates, degrees, programs, and pathway offerings, as applicable, are responsive to the needs of employers, workers, civic leaders, and students.

(2) The consortium shall collaborate with other public institutions, including, but not limited to, ~~local educational agencies~~, adult education consortia, local workforce development boards, and interested California State University and University of California institutions.

(3) The consortium shall collaborate with civic representatives, representatives from the labor community, and economic development and industry sector leaders within the region.

(4) The consortium shall include collaborating entities and persons identified in this subdivision in planning meetings, provide them with adequate notice of the consortium's proposed decisions, and solicit, consider, and respond to comments from them regarding the consortium's proposed decisions.

(5) Collaborative efforts shall focus upon evidence-based decisionmaking and student success with workforce outcomes aligned with the performance accountability measures of the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128), and closing labor

49 market and employment gaps. Each consortium shall strive to align programmatic offerings in
50 the most effective and efficient manner to avoid duplication of effort and streamline access to
51 services, and education and training opportunities.

52 (6) ~~Community college districts~~ Community college districts, local educational agencies, and
53 other entities participating in a consortium are encouraged to develop long-term partnerships
54 with private sector employers and labor partners to provide coordinated courses, programs, and
55 pathways with employer involvement in the assessment, planning, and development of
56 ~~community college~~ career technical education courses, programs, and pathways. To the extent
57 practicable, employer partnerships should build upon regional partnerships formed pursuant to
58 the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128) and other state or
59 federal programs.

60 (7) ~~Community college districts~~ districts, local educational agencies, and other entities
61 participating in a consortium are encouraged to develop and work closely with public and
62 private organizations that offer workforce development programs and pathways to ~~young adults~~
63 individuals with autism and other developmental disabilities to provide a comprehensive
64 approach to address workforce readiness and employment.

65 (f) The chancellor's office shall, in consultation with the California Workforce Development
66 Board, the Academic Senate for California Community Colleges, and its partners formed
67 pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128), as
68 applicable, develop and implement policies and guidance necessary to implement the
69 **Community College component of the** Strong Workforce Program, including policies and
70 guidance necessary for consortia, including community college districts and their regional
71 partners, to increase the number of aligned middle skill and career technical education courses,
72 programs, pathways, credentials, certificates, and degrees. No later than June 30, 2017, the
73 chancellor's office shall develop and implement policies and guidance pursuant to this
74 subdivision and bring before the Board of Governors of the California Community Colleges any
75 policies, regulations, and guidance necessary to accomplish all of the following:

76 (1) Facilitate the development, implementation, and sharing of career technical education
77 effective practices, curriculum models and courses, and community college credentials,
78 certificates, degrees, and programs across regions and among community college districts. (2)
79 Enable community college districts to develop career technical education and workforce
80 outcomes, and applicable associate degrees and certificates as appropriate.

81 (3) Provide accessible performance and labor market data that can be used flexibly by
82 participating community college districts and their regional partners to support the
83 implementation of the Strong Workforce Program and related efforts to align regional
84 workforce and education programming with regional labor market needs.

85 (4) Encourage local efficiency through coordinated and collaborative regional workforce efforts
86 in which community college districts are partners.

87 (5) Support curriculum processes to ensure that students are able to efficiently transfer
88 collegelevel career technical education credits across community college districts and to the
89 California State University and the University of California.

90 (6) Improve sector-based engagement with employers within a region.

91 (7) Provide, in partnership with employers, work-based learning opportunities for students that
92 increase their employability and earning potential.

93 (8) Enable community college districts to facilitate and optimize their resources to support the
94 Strong Workforce Program and other related regional workforce development efforts.

95 (9) Ensure that community college district Strong Workforce Program expenditures are focused
96 on improving student success with workforce outcomes for all students enrolled in
97 community college career technical education courses, programs, and pathways.

98 (10) (A) **For the Community College component only, notwithstanding** ~~Notwithstanding~~
99 the ~~June, June 30, 2017,~~ implementation date specified in this subdivision, develop and
100 implement a plan to streamline the course and curriculum approval process, both at the
101 state and local levels. The plan shall reflect an expedited state approval process for career
102 technical education courses, programs, and certificates, and may include the elimination of
103 an existing state course and program approval process. The plan shall reflect one of the
104 following two options: (i) A process of course and curriculum approval that enables
105 community college districts to develop a course or program within one academic year and to
106 offer that course or program the subsequent academic year.
107 (ii) A process of course and curriculum approval that enables community college districts to
108 develop a course or program within one academic semester and to offer that course or program
109 the subsequent academic semester.
110 (B) The plan described in subparagraph (A) shall also reflect the creation of a process that
111 enables career technical education courses and programs to be portable among community
112 college districts. This process shall enable a community college district to adapt, adopt, or adapt
113 and adopt another community college district's approved career technical education courses,
114 programs, and curriculum within one academic semester and to offer that course or program, or
115 utilize that curriculum, the subsequent academic semester.
116 (C) The chancellor's office shall consult with the Legislature and the Governor prior to
117 implementing the plan. The plan shall be developed no later than July 1, 2017, and
118 implemented no later than January 1, 2018.
119 (11) Eliminate barriers to hiring qualified instructors for career technical education courses,
120 including reevaluating the required minimum qualifications for career technical education
121 instructors.
122 (g) After June 30, 2017, and only as necessary, the chancellor's office may develop and
123 implement revised policies and guidance **for the Community College component only,** and
124 bring regulations before the Board of Governors of the California Community Colleges as
125 necessary for a community college district and its regional partners to accomplish both of the
126 following:
127 (1) Implement and expand the amount of aligned middle skill and career technical education
128 credentials, certificates, degrees, courses, programs, and pathways in accordance with
129 paragraphs (1) to (11), inclusive, of subdivision (f).
130 (2) Implement the recommendations of the Strong Workforce Task Force.
131 (h) (1) For purposes of this section, the chancellor's office shall consider input provided by
132 relevant stakeholders, including the Academic Senate of the California Community Colleges
133 ~~Colleges, the State Department of Education, the State Board of Education,~~ the California
134 Workforce Pathways Joint Advisory Committee, and the California Workforce Development
135 Board, ~~prior to~~ before implementing revised guidance, policies, or regulatory changes **for the**
136 **Community College component.**
137 (2) For purposes of ~~the Community College component this article~~ and in compliance with
138 the consultation requirements in Sections 70901 and 70902, the Academic Senate of the
139 California Community Colleges shall establish a career technical education subcommittee to
140 provide recommendations on career technical education issues. No less than 70 percent of the
141 subcommittee shall consist of career technical education faculty. The subcommittee's charter
142 shall require it to provide assistance to community college districts to ensure that career
143 technical education and its instruction is responsive and aligned to current and emergent
144 industry trends, and ensure that similar courses, programs, and degrees are portable among
145 community college districts.
146

147 Section 88822 of the Education Code is amended to read:

148

149 88822. For purposes of this part, the following terms have the following meanings:

150 (a) "Career pathways" means an identified series of positions, work experiences, or
151 educational benchmarks or credentials that offer occupational and financial advancement within
152 a specified career field or related fields over time.

153 (b) "Career technical education credential" means a workforce certificate, degree, or
154 industry recognized credential.

155 (c) "Career Technical Education Regional Consortium," or "consortium," means an
156 administrative grouping of community college districts and local educational agencies by the
157 Division of Workforce and Economic Development of the chancellor's office for the purpose of
158 coordination and joint planning within regions, as defined in subdivision (ip). **Local educational**
159 **agencies shall be grouped based on their association with community college districts.**
160 **In the event that a local educational agency does not fall within the geographical**
161 **boundaries of any community college district, the local educational agency shall be**
162 **grouped with the nearest community college district.**

163 (d) "Chancellor's office" means the Office of the Chancellor of the California Community
164 Colleges.

165 (e) **"Community College component" means the funding allocated pursuant to**
166 **Section 88825.**

167 (f) **"Deputy Sector Navigator" means an individual serving as an in-region contact for**
168 **an industry or occupational cluster, working with the region's colleges and employers to**
169 **create alignment around and deliver on workforce training and career pathways.**

170 ~~(e)(g)~~ "Industry" or "industry sectors" means trade associations or those firms that produce
171 similar products or provide similar services using somewhat similar business processes.

172 ~~(f)(h)~~ "Joint powers authority" means an entity established in accordance with Article 1
173 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code
174 for purposes of providing instruction to pupils enrolled in grades 9 to 12, inclusive.

175 ~~(i)~~ **"K-12 component" means funding allocated pursuant to Section 88827.**

176 ~~(j)~~ **"K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinator" means an individual serving as an in-region**
177 **contact to provide technical assistance and support to K-12 local educational**
178 **agencies pursuant to Section 88833 (a).**

179 ~~(k)~~ **"K-14 Technical Assistance Provider" (TAP) means an individual serving as the**
180 **inregion contact pursuant to Section 88833 (b) to provide leadership and technical**
181 **assistance regionwide on K-14 career technical education programs or pathways.** ~~(g)(l)~~

182 "Local educational agency" means a school district, county office of education, or charter
183 school.

184 ~~(f)~~

185 ~~(h)(m)~~ "Middle skill credential" means a certificate, associate's degree, or industry-recognized
186 credential that is less than a bachelor's degree but more than a high school diploma and
187 facilitates student success with workforce outcomes.

188 ~~(g)~~

~~(i)(n)~~

189 ~~(h)~~ "Plan" means the regional plan established under this part.

190 ~~(j)(o)~~ "Program" means ~~both components of~~ the Strong Workforce Program established under
191 this part. **The California Community Colleges component includes funding allocated**
192 **pursuant to Section 88825. The K-12 component includes funding allocated pursuant to**
193 **Section 88825.1.**

194 (i)
195 ~~(k)(p)~~ “Region” means a geographic area of the state defined by economic and labor market
196 factors containing at least one industry cluster and the cities, counties, ~~or~~ community college
197 districts, and local educational agencies, or all of them, in the industry cluster’s geographic area.
198 To the extent possible, for the purposes of this part, collaborative regions should align with
199 federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128) regional planning unit
200 boundaries specified in the California Strategic Workforce and Development Plan and expand
201 upon existing consortium infrastructure established by the chancellor’s office.

202 (j)
203 ~~(l)(q)~~ “Strong Workforce Task Force” means the Task Force on Workforce, Job Creation and a
204 Strong Economy commissioned by the Board of Governors of the California Community
205 Colleges.
206

207 Section 88823 of the Education Code is amended to read:
208

209 88823. (a) **This section applies to the Community College component.** Commencing July 1,
210 2017, as a condition of receipt of funds **allocated pursuant to Section 88825**~~from this~~
211 **program** for a fiscal year, each consortium, in consultation with collaborating entities identified
212 in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of Section 88821, shall submit a plan to the chancellor’s
213 office that has been updated for that fiscal year.

214 (b) The plan pursuant to subdivision (a) shall include all of the following requirements:

215 (1) The names of the community college districts ~~and local educational agencies~~
216 participating in the consortium, ~~including~~**including** the name of the community college identified
217 as the consortium’s fiscal agent, and the names of ~~other~~ entities collaborating pursuant to
218 paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of Section 88821.

219 (2) The governance model for the consortium. Decisions governing, or relating to, the
220 distribution of fiscal resources ~~for the K-12 component shall be made by the subcommittee~~
221 **formed pursuant to Section 88825.3, in consultation with the consortium. Decisions**
222 **governing, or relating to, the distribution of fiscal resources for the California**
223 **Community Colleges component** shall be determined exclusively by the community college
224 districts participating in the consortium.

225 (3) An analysis of regional labor market needs informed by a federal Workforce Innovation
226 and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128) economic analysis and other sources as applicable.
227 This analysis shall also include wage data for each industry sector or labor market need
228 identified.

229 (4) An inventory of regionally prioritized and locally prioritized projects and programs that
230 close relevant labor market and employment gaps.

231 (5) Measurable regional goals that align with the performance accountability measures of
232 the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128).

233 (6) For regionally prioritized projects and ~~programs~~, ~~programs~~ **under the California**
234 **Community Colleges component**, a work plan, spending plan, and budget. The work plan,
235 spending plan, and budget shall identify the amount of funding allocated for one-time and
236 ongoing expenditures.

237 (7) A description of the alignment of work plans, spending plans, and other education and
238 workforce plans guiding services in the region, including plans pertaining to the building of
239 career pathways and the employment of workforce sector strategies and those plans required
240 pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128). (c)
241 Each consortium shall submit a plan by January 31 once every four years and shall annually

242 update the plan by January 31 of each year until the next new plan is submitted. The annual
243 update of the plan required to be submitted by January 31, 2019, shall reflect the addition
244 of the K-12 component.

245 (d) The chancellor's office shall review the plans on a four-year cycle and ensure that
246 annual updates are made by each consortium. The chancellor's office shall determine if each
247 consortium has made significant progress in meeting the goals and measures outlined in its
248 plan, and provide technical assistance to a consortium that has not met its goals. The
249 chancellor's office is encouraged to provide technical assistance pursuant to this subdivision
250 through the Institutional Effectiveness Partnership Initiative.

251 (e) To avoid duplication of effort, plans developed pursuant to this section shall be informed
252 by, aligned with, and expand upon regional plans and planning efforts established pursuant to
253 the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128).

254 (f) Community college districts and local educational agencies participating in a
255 consortium shall utilize their region's plan to inform local-campus campus planning efforts to
256 implement career technical education courses, programs, and pathways and integrate available
257 local, regional, state, and nonpublic resources to ensure that students will achieve successful
258 workforce outcomes.

259 (g) Community college districts shall meet with the members of their consortium not less
260 than annually to inform on the delivery of career technical education and workforce
261 development courses, programs, and pathways within the region.

262 (h) Each region's plan shall be for the primary purpose of informing the development of
263 strategies related to career technical education and workforce development courses, programs,
264 and pathways. Each region's plan shall reflect strategies to efficiently and effectively utilize any
265 available public and private resources, including funds for the Career Technical Education
266 Pathways Program established in Part 52 (commencing with Section 88530), in a manner that
267 better aligns career technical education courses, programs, and pathways with the needs of
268 their regional economies.

269 (i) It is the intent of the Legislature to align community college career technical education
270 programs within the Strong Workforce Program. Staff from the chancellor's office, the
271 Legislative Analyst's Office, and the Department of Finance are requested to investigate the
272 potential consolidation of community college career technical education programs within the
273 Strong Workforce Program.

274

275 Section 88825 of the Education Code is amended to read:

276

277 88825. (a) This section applies to the California Community Colleges component, commencing
278 with the 2017–18 fiscal year.

279 (b) To promote the success of community college students and the career technical education
280 programs that serve them, up to 5 percent of the funds appropriated for the program California
281 Community Colleges component may be allocated by the Board of Governors of the California
282 Community Colleges to a community college district for statewide activities to improve and
283 administer the program, including the facilitation of system, program, and data alignment at the
284 state and regional levels and the implementation of the 25 recommendations presented to the
285 board of governors on January 19 and 20, 2016, by the Strong Workforce Task Force. The
286 chancellor's office shall consult with the California Workforce Development Board and other
287 appropriate state agencies on the development of all statewide activities that would be
288 implemented by the selected district to facilitate broader workforce and education system

289 alignment. Statewide coordination activities funded out of this allocation may include, but are not
290 limited to, the following activities:

- 291 (1) State-level coordination for the development of labor market analyses pertaining to
292 economic and industry trends and jobs projections for the purpose of supporting common
293 regional planning efforts and the alignment of career technical education program offerings
294 with regional labor market dynamics.
- 295 (2) Research, evaluation, and technical assistance on the use of effective local and regional
296 policies, best practices, and model partnerships.
- 297 (3) Development and prototyping of innovative policies, practices, and coordinated services with
298 local workforce and education partners.
- 299 (4) Participation of community college districts in existing regional coalitions and planning
300 efforts.
- 301 (5) Cross-training local program staff.
- 302 (6) Development and maintenance of a state-level cross-system data reporting mechanism with
303 partners formed pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public
304 Law 113-128) for the purpose of monitoring workforce program outcomes and performance
305 accountability.
- 306 (7) Leveraging allocated funds with state and local partners through interagency agreements,
307 memorandums of understanding, or other appropriate mechanisms.
- 308 (c) (1) Forty percent of the funds apportioned for the **Community College component of the**
309 program shall be apportioned directly to the fiscal agent of the consortium for the purpose of
310 funding regionally prioritized projects and programs that meet the needs of local and regional
311 economies, as identified in regional plans and Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public
312 Law 113-128) regional plans.
- 313 (2) Sixty percent of the funds apportioned for the **Community College component of the**
314 program shall be apportioned directly to community college districts in the consortium. Funds
315 apportioned directly to a community college district shall be expended for the purpose of funding
316 regionally prioritized projects and programs within the community college district that meet the
317 needs of local and regional economies, as identified in regional plans and Workforce Innovation
318 and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128) regional plans. As a condition of receiving direct
319 funding, each community college district shall actively participate in its consortium. (d) The
320 allocation of funds to a consortium shall be based on a schedule determined by the chancellor's
321 office and is effective for the four years of each plan cycle. Within the four-year plan cycle, this
322 schedule may be altered to reflect changes in the statewide allocation for the program as
323 appropriated in the annual Budget Act.
- 324 (e) The chancellor's office shall provide to the Department of Finance and the Legislative
325 Analyst's Office its recommendations for the allocation of funds available for each consortium no
326 later than August 30 of each year. The department shall approve the allocation plan before the
327 release of funding.
- 328 (f) (1) For each four-year plan cycle, the chancellor's office shall determine the amount of
329 funds to be allocated to each consortium based on the following weighted factors in each
330 region: (A) The unemployment rate. This factor shall comprise 33 percent of the allocation
331 formula. (B) The proportion of career technical education full-time equivalent students. This
332 factor shall comprise 33 percent of the allocation formula.
- 333 (C) The proportion of projected job openings. This factor shall comprise 17 percent of the
334 allocation formula.
- 335 (D) The proportion of successful workforce outcomes as evidenced by the performance
336 accountability measures of the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law
337 113-128). This factor shall comprise 17 percent of the allocation formula.

338 (2) For each four-year plan cycle, the chancellor's office shall determine the amount of funds to
339 be allocated directly to each community college district within a consortium based on the
340 weighted factors, specified in subparagraphs (A) to (D), inclusive, of paragraph (1), in each
341 district within the region.

342 (g) A consortium shall allocate funds in accordance with its plan and only to community
343 college districts. Decisions governing, or relating to, the distribution of the consortium's fiscal
344 resources shall be determined exclusively by the community college districts participating in the
345 consortium.

346 (h) As a condition of receipt of funds under this section, a participating community college
347 district shall comply with all of the following:

348 (1) Be a member of a consortium.

349 (2) Participate in regional planning efforts formed pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation
350 and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128) and other efforts that align workforce,
351 employment, and education services.

352 (3) Work with other consortium members to create and submit a plan to the chancellor's office
353 by January 31 of every fourth year of a four-year plan cycle.

354 (4) Provide accessible performance and labor market data that can be used by community
355 college districts and their regional partners to support the implementation of the program and
356 any related efforts to align regional workforce and education programming with regional
357 labor market needs, including, but not limited to, regional planning efforts established
358 pursuant to the federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128).

359 (5) Include interested public universities **and local educational agencies** in regional planning.

360 (6) Certify that the use of funds will meet the intent of the program to accomplish all of the
361 following:

362 (A) Increase the number of students in quality career technical education courses,
363 programs, and pathways that will achieve successful workforce outcomes.

364 (B) Increase the number of quality career technical education courses, programs, and
365 pathways that lead to successful workforce outcomes, or invest in new or emerging career
366 technical education courses, programs, and pathways that may become operative in
367 subsequent years and are likely to lead to successful workforce outcomes.

368 (C) Address recommendations from the Strong Workforce Task Force, including the
369 recommended provision of student services related to career exploration, job readiness and job
370 placement, and work-based learning.

371 (i) Funds appropriated to community college districts for the program shall supplement, not
372 supplant, existing funding of community college career technical education programs. This
373 subdivision shall not be interpreted to mean that a participating community college district is
374 prohibited from eliminating or altering existing programs, but the percentage of that community
375 college district's total full-time equivalent students enrolled in career technical education
376 courses relative to the total full-time equivalent students enrolled in the district shall not be
377 reduced from the percentage computed for the 2015–16 fiscal year.

378 (j) Programs, courses, or instructional materials developed using funding from the program
379 may be made available to all community college districts, as appropriate, through the online
380 clearinghouse of information created as part of the Institutional Effectiveness Partnership
381 Initiative.

382

383 Section 88825.1 of the Education Code is withdrawn:

384

385 ~~88825.1. (a) Commencing with the 2018–19 fiscal year, the amount appropriated in the~~
386 ~~annual Budget Act for the K-12 component of the Strong Workforce Program is provided~~
387 ~~to create, support, or expand career technical education programs at the K-12 level that~~
388 ~~are aligned with the workforce development efforts occurring through the Strong~~
389 ~~Workforce Program.~~

390 ~~(b) (1) Funding pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be apportioned by the chancellor's office~~
391 ~~to the fiscal agent of each consortium based on the following weighted factors in each~~
392 ~~region:~~

393 ~~(A) — The unemployment rate. This factor shall comprise 33 percent of the allocation~~
394 ~~formula.~~

395 ~~(B) — The region's total average daily attendance for pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive.~~
396 ~~This factor shall comprise 33 percent of the allocation formula. For purposes of this~~
397 ~~section, average daily attendance shall be those figures that are reported at the time of~~
398 ~~the second principal apportionment for the previous fiscal year for pupils in grades 7 to~~
399 ~~12, inclusive.~~

400 ~~(C) — The proportion of projected job openings. This factor shall comprise 34 percent of~~
401 ~~the allocation formula.~~

402 ~~(2) — Of the amounts apportioned to each consortium pursuant to paragraph (1), 4~~
403 ~~percent is designated for applicants with average daily attendance of less than or equal~~
404 ~~to 140, 8 percent is designated for applicants with average daily attendance of more than~~
405 ~~140 and less than or equal to 550, and 88 percent is designated for applicants with~~
406 ~~average daily attendance of more than 550, unless otherwise determined by the~~
407 ~~subcommittee formed pursuant to Section 88825.3, in consultation with the consortium.~~
408 ~~For any applicant consisting of more than one school district, county office of education,~~
409 ~~charter school, or regional occupational center or program operated by a joint powers~~
410 ~~authority, or of any combination of those entities, the sum of the average daily~~
411 ~~attendance for each of the constituent entities shall be used for purposes of this~~
412 ~~subdivision.~~

413 ~~(3) — The chancellor's office shall provide to the Department of Finance and the~~
414 ~~Legislative Analyst a schedule of proposed allocations, as determined by paragraph (1)~~
415 ~~of subdivision (b), for each consortium no later than August 30 of each year. The~~
416 ~~Department of Finance shall approve the allocation plan before the release of funding.~~

417 ~~(4) — Funding apportioned in subdivision (a) shall be available for encumbrance for~~
418 ~~three years following the fiscal year of appropriation.~~

419

420 Section 88825.2 of the Education Code is withdrawn:

421

422 ~~88825.2. Each consortium shall administer a competitive grant program to allocate the~~
423 ~~funding provided pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 88825.1 to eligible grant~~
424 ~~recipients. An applicant shall comply with all of the following to be considered for a~~
425 ~~grant award:~~

426 ~~(a) — Be a member of the consortium, and participate in regional efforts to align~~
427 ~~workforce, employment, and education services.~~

428 ~~(b) — Utilize its region's plan developed pursuant to Section 88823 to inform its efforts~~
429 ~~to implement or expand upon career technical education courses, programs, and~~
430 ~~pathways and to the extent possible, integrate available local, regional, state, and~~
431 ~~nonpublic resources to ensure that pupils will achieve successful workforce~~
432 ~~outcomes. To the extent an applicant's career technical education programs do not~~

433 ~~align to the region's plan in the 2018–19 fiscal year, the applicant shall be deemed to~~
434 ~~have met this requirement by including in its grant application the steps that it will take~~
435 ~~during the 2018–19 fiscal year to align its programs with its region's plan.~~
436 ~~(c) — (1) Provide a proportional dollar-for-dollar match for any funding received from~~
437 ~~this program as follows, which shall be used to support the program or programs for~~
438 ~~which the grant was awarded:~~
439 ~~(A) For regional occupational centers or programs operated by joint powers~~
440 ~~authorities, one dollar (\$1) for every one dollar (\$1) received from this program. (B)~~
441 ~~For local educational agencies, two dollars (\$2) for every one dollar (\$1) received~~
442 ~~from this program.~~
443 ~~(2) The local match may include funding from school district and charter school local~~
444 ~~control funding formula apportionments pursuant to Section 42238.02, the federal~~
445 ~~Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (20 U.S.C.~~
446 ~~Sec. 2301 et seq.) or its successor, the partnership academies program pursuant to~~
447 ~~Article 5 (commencing with Section 54690) of Chapter 9 of Part 29 of Division 4 of~~
448 ~~Title 2, the agricultural career technical education incentive program pursuant to Article~~
449 ~~7.5 (commencing with Section 52460) of Chapter 9 of Part 28 of Division 4 of Title 2, or~~
450 ~~any other source, except as provided in paragraph (3).~~
451 ~~(3) That local match shall not include funding from the California Career~~
452 ~~Pathways Trust established pursuant to Section 53010, or the California Career Technical~~
453 ~~Education Incentive Grant Program established pursuant to Section 53070.~~
454 ~~(d) The applicant, or the applicant's career technical education program, as~~
455 ~~applicable, shall meet all of the following minimum eligibility standards: (1) Is~~
456 ~~informed by, aligned with, and expands upon regional plans and planning~~
457 ~~efforts occurring through the Strong Workforce Program.~~
458 ~~(2) Offers high-quality curriculum and instruction aligned with the California career~~
459 ~~technical education model curriculum standards, including, but not limited to,~~
460 ~~providing a coherent sequence of career technical education courses that enable~~
461 ~~pupils to transition to postsecondary education programs that lead to a career~~
462 ~~pathway or attain employment upon graduation from high school.~~
463 ~~(3) Provides pupils with quality career exploration and guidance.~~
464 ~~(4) Provides pupil support services, including counseling and student leadership~~
465 ~~development.~~
466 ~~(5) Provides opportunities for pupils to participate in after school, extended day, and out-~~
467 ~~of-school internships, competitions, and other work-based learning opportunities.~~
468 ~~(6) Leads to an industry-recognized credential or certificate, or appropriate~~
469 ~~postsecondary training or employment.~~
470 ~~(7) Is staffed by skilled teachers or faculty and provides professional development~~
471 ~~opportunities for those teachers or faculty members.~~
472 ~~(8) (A) Reports data, as a program participation requirement, that can be used by local~~
473 ~~educational agencies, community college districts, and their regional partners to~~
474 ~~support and evaluate the program.~~
475 ~~(B) Data reported pursuant to this paragraph shall include, but is not limited to,~~
476 ~~metrics aligned with the core metrics required by the federal Workforce Innovation~~
477 ~~and Opportunity Act (29 U.S.C. 3101 et seq.) and the quality indicators described in~~
478 ~~the California State Plan for Career Technical Education required by the federal Carl D.~~
479 ~~Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (20 U.S.C. Sec.~~
480 ~~2301 et seq.) or its successor, and the following metrics:~~

- 481 ~~(i) The number of pupils completing high school.~~
482 ~~(ii) The number of pupils completing career technical education coursework. (iii) The~~
483 ~~number of pupils obtaining an industry-recognized credential, certificate, license,~~
484 ~~or other measure of technical skill attainment.~~
485 ~~(iv) The number of former pupils employed and the types of businesses in which~~
486 ~~they are employed.~~
487 ~~(v) The number of former pupils enrolled in a postsecondary educational~~
488 ~~institution, a state apprenticeship program, or another form of job training. (C) Data~~
489 ~~collected pursuant to this section by program participants shall be reported to the~~
490 ~~State Department of Education by a date to be determined by the department each~~
491 ~~fiscal year. The department shall make the data reported available to the chancellor's~~
492 ~~office on a date determined by the chancellor's office to ensure the information is~~
493 ~~included in the data on the California Community Colleges LaunchBoard data system~~
494 ~~and in the annual report pursuant to Section 88826.~~
495

496 Section 88825.3 of the Education Code is withdrawn:
497

498 ~~88825.3. For purposes of awarding grants under the K-12 component of the~~
499 ~~Strong Workforce Program, each consortium shall form a subcommittee made up~~
500 ~~of individuals with expertise in K-12 education and workforce development. All~~
501 ~~individuals selected for the subcommittee shall be participants in the consortium.~~
502 ~~The subcommittee shall determine, in consultation with the consortium, the grant~~
503 ~~recipients and the specific funding amount for each grant.~~
504

505 Section 88825.4 of the Education Code is withdrawn:
506

507 ~~88825.4. A grant recipient for purposes of the K-12 component of the Strong~~
508 ~~Workforce Program may consist of one or more, or any combination, of the~~
509 ~~following:~~
510 ~~(a) School districts.~~
511 ~~(b) County offices of education.~~
512 ~~(c) Charter schools.~~
513 ~~(d) Regional occupational centers or programs operated by a joint powers authority,~~
514 ~~provided that the application has the written consent of each participating local~~
515 ~~educational agency.~~
516

517 Section 88825.5 of the Education Code is withdrawn:
518

519 ~~88825.5. (a) When determining grant recipients under the K-12 component of the Strong~~
520 ~~Workforce Program, the subcommittee formed pursuant to Section 88825.3, in~~
521 ~~consultation with the consortium, shall do both of the following:~~
522 ~~(1) Give positive consideration to each of the following characteristics in an applicant:~~
523 ~~(A) Aligned programs serving unduplicated pupils as defined in Section 42238.02. (B)~~
524 ~~Programs that the subcommittee, in consultation with the consortium, determines~~
525 ~~most effectively meet the needs of the local and regional economies.~~
526 ~~(C) Programs serving pupil subgroups that have higher than average dropout rates as~~
527 ~~identified by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.~~
528 ~~(D) Programs located in an area of the state with a high unemployment rate.~~

- 529 ~~(2) Give positive consideration to programs to the extent they do any of the following: (A)~~
530 ~~Successfully leverage one or both of the following:~~
531 ~~(i) Existing structures, requirements, and resources of the federal Carl D. Perkins Career~~
532 ~~and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (20 U.S.C. Sec. 2301 et seq.) or its~~
533 ~~successor, the partnership academies program pursuant to Article 5 (commencing~~
534 ~~with Section 54690) of Chapter 9 of Part 29 of Division 4 of Title 2, or the agricultural~~
535 ~~career technical education incentive program pursuant to Article 7.5 (commencing~~
536 ~~with Section 52460) of Chapter 9 of Part 28 of Division 4 of Title 2.~~
537 ~~(ii) Contributions from industry, labor, and philanthropic sources.~~
538 ~~(B) Make significant investments in career technical education infrastructure and~~
539 ~~equipment.~~
540 ~~(C) Operate within rural school districts.~~
541 ~~(b) When determining grant recipients, the subcommittee, in consultation with the~~
542 ~~consortium, shall give greatest weight to the applicant characteristics included in~~
543 ~~paragraph (1) of subdivision (a).~~
544

545 Section 88825.6 of the Education Code is withdrawn:

546

547 ~~**88825.6. As a condition of receiving funds, grant recipients shall make expenditure data**~~
548 ~~**on career technical education programs available for purposes of determining if the**~~
549 ~~**grant recipients have met the dollar-for-dollar match requirement specified in subdivision**~~
550 ~~**(c) of Section 88825.2, and for monitoring the use of funds provided pursuant to Section**~~
551 ~~**88825.1.**~~
552

553 Section 88826 of the Education Code is amended to read:

554

555 **88826. This section applies to the Community College component.**

556 (a) ~~The~~The chancellor's office shall post on its Internet Web site, for ease of access, all
557 regional plans and their subsequent progress plans, and solicit feedback from each consortium
558 on recommendations they have for overall program improvement.

559 (b) **For the California Community Colleges component and K-12 component, the The**
560 chancellor's office shall implement performance accountability outcome measures for the
561 **Community College component of** the program that provide the Governor, the Legislature,
562 and the general public with information that quantifies employer and student ~~and pupil~~
563 outcomes for those participating in the program. These performance accountability measures
564 shall, to the extent possible, align with the performance accountability measures of the federal
565 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (Public Law 113-128). Outcome measures shall
566 include, to the extent possible, demographic data, to allow policymakers and the general public
567 to evaluate progress in closing equity gaps in program access and completion, and earnings of
568 underserved demographic groups.

569 (b) ~~The~~The chancellor's office shall post on its Internet Web site, for ease of access, all regional
570 plans and their subsequent progress plans, and solicit feedback from each consortium on
571 recommendations they have for overall program improvement.

572 (c) (1) Commencing in 2018, the chancellor's office shall submit a report on the **Community**
573 **College component of the** program to the Governor and the Legislature on or before the
574 January 1 immediately subsequent to the fiscal year which the report addresses. This report
575 shall include, but is not limited to, all of the following:

- 576 (A) Data summarizing outcome accountability performance measures for the California
577 Community Colleges component collected by the chancellor's office pursuant to subdivision
578 (a). (b).
- 579 (B) A summary of recommendations for program improvement collected by the chancellor's
580 office pursuant to subdivision ~~(b)~~. (a).
- 581 (C) Recommendations For the California Community Colleges component,
582 recommendations Recommendations for future allocations to consortiums based upon
583 program outcomes, including, at a minimum, the number of certificates granted to, and wage
584 increases of, students who have completed a career technical education program.
- 585 (2) Commencing in 2020, the report required pursuant to paragraph (1) shall also include
586 both of the following:
- 587 (A) Data summarizing outcome accountability performance measures for the K-12
588 component collected by the chancellor's office pursuant to subparagraph (C) of
589 paragraph (8) of subdivision (d) of Section 88825.2.
- 590 (B) A summary of recommendations for program improvement collected by the
591 chancellor's office pursuant to subdivision (a).
- 592 (2)
- 593 (3)(2) A report to be submitted pursuant to ~~paragraph (1)~~ this subdivision shall be submitted in
594 compliance with Section 9795 of the Government Code.

595
596 Section 88827 of the Education Code is amended to read:

597
598 **88827. (a) Commencing with the 2018–19 fiscal year, the amount appropriated in**
599 **Provision 2 of Item 6870-203-0001 of Section 2.0 of the annual Budget Act for the**
600 **K-12 Strong Workforce Pathway Coordinators shall support the establishment of a**
601 **K-12 Strong Workforce Pathway Coordinator in each community college district. K-12**
602 **Strong Workforce Pathway Coordinators shall be selected through a competitive process**
603 **jointly administered by the chancellor's office and the Superintendent of Public**
604 **Instruction, and shall perform duties, including, but not limited to, all of the following: (1)**
605 **Provide technical assistance and support to local educational agencies in utilizing their**
606 **region's plan to inform local planning efforts to implement career technical education**
607 **courses, programs, and pathways and integrate available local, regional, state, and**
608 **nonpublic resources to ensure that pupils will achieve successful workforce outcomes.**
609 **(2) Collaborate on behalf of the local educational agencies within the regional**
610 **consortium, including identifying and advocating for K-12 programmatic priorities. As**
611 **part of this duty, each K-12 Strong Workforce Pathway Coordinator shall stay current**
612 **with K-12 career technical education program needs in order to provide guidance, in**
613 **collaboration with local educational agencies participating in the regional consortium, to**
614 **the chancellor's office, the regional consortium, and industry. (3) Act as first point of**
615 **contact for local educational agencies, industry organizations, and employers with the**
616 **intent of assisting local educational agencies respond to industry needs and facilitating**
617 **industry connection with K-12 career technical education programs.**
618 **(4) Cultivate collaborative communities so that local educational agencies and industry**
619 **can collaborate and provide peer-to-peer knowledge exchange in areas of common**
620 **interest.**

621 **88827. This section applies to the K-12 component. (a) Commencing with the 2018–19**
622 **fiscal year, the amount appropriated in the annual Budget Act for the K-12 Strong**
623 **Workforce Program is provided to create, support, or expand high-quality career**

624 technical education programs at the K-12 level that are aligned with the workforce
625 development efforts occurring through the Strong Workforce Program.
626 (b) (1) Pursuant to subdivision (a), two hundred million dollars (\$200,000,000) shall be
627 apportioned by the chancellor's office to the fiscal agent of each consortium based on
628 the following weighted factors in each region:
629 (A) The unemployment rate. This factor shall comprise 33 percent of the allocation
630 formula.
631 (B) The region's total average daily attendance for pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive.
632 This factor shall comprise 33 percent of the allocation formula. For purposes of this
633 section, average daily attendance shall be those figures that are reported at the time of
634 the second principal apportionment for the previous fiscal year.
635 (C) The proportion of projected job openings. This factor shall comprise 34 percent of
636 the allocation formula.
637 (2) Of the amounts apportioned to each consortium pursuant to paragraph (1), 4
638 percent is designated for applicants with total average daily attendance of less than or
639 equal to 140, 8 percent is designated for applicants with total average daily attendance of
640 more than 140 and less than or equal to 550, and 88 percent is designated for applicants
641 with total average daily attendance of more than 550, unless otherwise determined by the
642 K12 Selection Committee formed pursuant to Section 88829, in consultation with the
643 consortium. For any applicant consisting of more than one school district, county office
644 of education, charter school, or regional occupational center or program operated by a
645 joint powers authority, or of any combination of those entities, the sum of the average
646 daily attendance for each of the constituent entities shall be used for purposes of this
647 subdivision.
648 (3) The chancellor's office shall provide to the Superintendent of Public Instruction,
649 the Department of Finance and the Legislative Analyst a schedule of proposed
650 allocations, as determined by paragraph (1) of subdivision (b), for each consortium no
651 later than August 30 of each year. The Department of Finance shall approve the
652 allocation plan before the release of funding.
653 (c) Funds appropriated in the annual Budget Act to support consortia administrative
654 costs shall be apportioned by the chancellor's office in an amount equal to one percent
655 of each consortium's K-12 allocation pursuant to this section to support the costs to
656 administer the regional grant process and to support the duties of the K-12 Selection
657 Committee.

658

659 Section 88828 is added to the Education Code, to read:

660

661 88828. This section applies to the K-12 component. Each consortium shall administer a
662 competitive grant program to distribute funding allocated pursuant to subdivision (b) of
663 Section 88827 to eligible grant recipients. Consortia are encouraged to collaboratively
664 develop a uniform grant application process that includes a process for grant renewals
665 and for a grant applicant to appeal a grant award decision of the K-12 Selection
666 Committee. Local educational agencies applying to receive a grant from a consortium
667 shall comply with all of the following:

668 (a) Be located within the geographical boundaries of the consortium, and engage in
669 regional efforts to align workforce, employment, and education services.

670 (b) Use their consortium's plan developed pursuant to Section 88823 to inform their
671 efforts to create, support, implement or expand upon career technical education courses,

672 course sequences, programs, and pathways, and to the extent possible, integrate
673 available local, regional, state, and nonpublic resources to improve the successful
674 outcomes of pupils enrolled in career technical education courses, course sequences,
675 programs, and pathways. To the extent an applicant's career technical education
676 program, or programs, offered in fiscal year 2018-19 do not align with their consortium's
677 plan developed pursuant to Section 88823, the applicant shall be deemed to meet this
678 requirement by including in its grant application the steps that it will take during the
679 2018-19 fiscal year to align its career technical education program, or programs, with its
680 consortium's plan.

681 (c) (1) Provide matching funds for any grant funding received from this program as
682 follows:

683 (A) For regional occupational centers or programs operated by joint powers
684 authorities, one dollar (\$1) for every one dollar (\$1) received from this program.

685 (B) For local educational agencies, two dollars (\$2) for every one dollar (\$1) received
686 from this program.

687 (2) The local match may include funding from school district and charter school local
688 control funding formula apportionments pursuant to Section 42238.02, the federal
689 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (20 U.S.C.
690 Sec. 2301 et seq.) or its successor, the partnership academies program pursuant to
691 Article 5 (commencing with Section 54690) of Chapter 9 of Part 29 of Division 4 of Title
692 2, the agricultural career technical education incentive program pursuant to Article 7.5
693 (commencing with Section 52460) of Chapter 9 of Part 28 of Division 4 of Title 2, or any
694 other source, except as provided in paragraph (3).

695 (3) That local match shall not include any funding received by the applicant from the
696 California Career Pathways Trust established pursuant to Section 53010, or the California
697 Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Program established pursuant to Section
698 53070.

699 (4) An applicant's matching funds shall be used to support the program, or programs, for
700 which the applicant was awarded a grant.

701 (d) The applicant, or the applicant's career technical education program, as applicable,
702 shall meet all of the following minimum eligibility standards:

703 (1) Is informed by, aligned with, and expands upon regional plans and planning efforts
704 occurring through the Strong Workforce Program.

705 (2) Offers high-quality curriculum and instruction aligned with the California career
706 technical education model curriculum standards, including, but not limited to,
707 providing a coherent sequence of career technical education courses that enable
708 pupils to transition to postsecondary education or training programs that lead to a
709 career pathway or attain employment upon graduation from high school.

710 (3) Provides pupils with quality career exploration and guidance.

711 (4) Provides pupil support services, including, but not limited to, counseling and student
712 leadership development.

713 (5) Provides opportunities for pupils to participate in after school, extended day, and out
714 of-school internships, competitions, and other work-based learning opportunities. (6)

715 Leads to an industry-recognized credential or certificate, or appropriate
716 postsecondary training or employment.

717 (7) Is staffed by skilled teachers or faculty and provides professional development
718 opportunities for those teachers or faculty members.

719 (8) (A) Reports data that can be used by policymakers, local educational agencies,
720 community college districts, and their regional partners to support and evaluate the

721 program, including, to the extent possible, demographic data used to evaluate progress
722 in closing equity gaps in program access and completion, and earnings of underserved
723 demographic groups.

724 (B) Data reported pursuant to this paragraph shall include, but is not limited to, metrics
725 aligned with the core metrics required by the federal Workforce Innovation and
726 Opportunity Act (29 U.S.C. 3101 et seq.), the College/Career Indicator included in the
727 California School Dashboard, and the quality indicators described in the California State
728 Plan for Career Technical Education required by the federal Carl D. Perkins Career and
729 Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (20 U.S.C. Sec. 2301 et seq.) or its
730 successor, and the following metrics:

731 (i) The number of pupils completing high school.

732 (ii) The number of pupils completing career technical education coursework.

733 (iii) The number of pupils obtaining an industry-recognized credential, certificate, license,
734 or other measure of technical skill attainment.

735 (iv) The number of former pupils employed and the types of businesses in which they are
736 employed.

737 (v) The number of former pupils enrolled in:

738 (I) A postsecondary educational institution, disaggregated by public, private nonprofit,
739 and private for profit institutions. (II) A state apprenticeship program (III) Another form
740 of job training.

741 (C) No later than November 30 of each fiscal year, the California Workforce Pathways
742 Joint Advisory Committee established pursuant to Section 12053 shall review the
743 data metrics specified in paragraph (B) and make recommendations to the
744 Legislature and the Department of Finance as to whether: (1) they are the most
745 appropriate metrics to measure and evaluate program outcomes for both new and
746 renewal applicants, and (2) other metrics should be included.

747 (D) Data collected pursuant to this section shall be reported by the grant recipient to the
748 State Department of Education and their K-14 Technical Assistance Provider by
749 November 1 immediately subsequent to the fiscal year for which the data is being
750 reported. The K-14 Technical Assistance Provider shall annually notify the K-12 Selection
751 Committee in each region of any grant recipient that fails to provide the required
752 outcome data. The K-12 Selection Committee, in consultation with the consortium, may
753 terminate or rescind contracts and grants from grantees that fail to provide the required
754 outcome-based data pursuant to this paragraph.

755 (E) The State Department of Education shall make the data reported pursuant to
756 paragraph (D) available to the chancellor's office on a date to be determined by the
757 chancellor's office, to ensure the data is included on the California Community
758 Colleges LaunchBoard data platform.

759 (F) No later than January 31, 2023, the State Department of Education shall submit a
760 report to the Governor and the Legislature evaluating the progress that local
761 educational agencies have made in expanding the availability of high-quality,
762 industry-valued career technical education and workforce development opportunities,
763 and improving coordination and alignment with other workforce training, education,
764 and employment services in the state.

765

766 Section 88829 is added to the Education Code, to read:

767

768 **88829. (a) For purposes of awarding grants under the K-12 component of the Strong**
769 **Workforce Program, each consortium shall form a K-12 Selection Committee made up of**
770 **individuals with expertise in K-12 career technical education and workforce development.**
771 **The K-12 Selection Committee membership shall be comprised of the following:**
772 **(1) Current or former K-12 career technical education teachers and administrators.**
773 **(2) Charter school representatives, including representatives of charters operating**
774 **pursuant to Education Code Section 47612.1(a).**
775 **(3) Career guidance counselors.**
776 **(4) Representatives of industries that are prioritized by the consortium.**
777 **(5) At least one community college faculty or administrator.**
778 **(6) Other K-12 education or other stakeholders as determined by the consortium. (b) The**
779 **K-14 Technical Assistance Provider in each consortium shall serve as a consultant to**
780 **the K-12 Selection Committee.**
781 **(c) Decisions governing, or relating to, the distribution of fiscal resources for the K-12**
782 **component shall be made exclusively by the K-12 Selection Committee, including**
783 **selection of grant recipients and specific funding amounts for each grant.**
784 **(1) The K-12 Selection Committee shall annually notify the Superintendent of Public**
785 **Instruction, the State Board of Education, the Department of Finance and the Legislature**
786 **of the amount awarded to each grant recipient and the activities to be supported by the**
787 **grant.**
788 **(d) To be eligible to receive a grant, a local educational agency with a representative on**
789 **the K-12 Selection Committee shall maintain appropriate and transparent internal**
790 **controls and processes to ensure that the local educational agency representative's**
791 **duties and responsibilities are clearly delineated, identified, and distinguished from the**
792 **duties and responsibilities conferred upon the local educational agency as a grant**
793 **applicant and recipient.**

794 Section 88830 is added to the Education Code, to read:

795
796 **88830. (a) When determining grant recipients under the K-12 component of the Strong**
797 **Workforce Program, the K-12 Selection Committee shall consider past performance of**
798 **grantees prior to awarding additional funds to those reapplying for grants, and do all of**
799 **the following:**
800 **(1) Give positive consideration to each of the following characteristics in an applicant:**
801 **(A) Aligned programs serving unduplicated pupils as defined in Section 42238.02. (B)**
802 **Programs that the K-12 Selection Committee, in consultation with the consortium,**
803 **determines most effectively meet the needs of the local and regional economies. (C)**
804 **Programs serving pupil subgroups that have higher than average dropout rates as**
805 **identified by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.**
806 **(D) Programs located in an area of the state with a high unemployment rate.**
807 **(2) Give positive consideration to programs to the extent they do any of the following:**
808 **(A) Successfully leverage one or both of the following:**
809 **(i) Existing structures, requirements, and resources of the federal Carl D. Perkins**
810 **Career and Technical Education Improvement Act of 2006 (20 U.S.C. Sec. 2301 et**
811 **seq.) or its successor, the partnership academies program pursuant to Article 5**
812 **(commencing with Section 54690) of Chapter 9 of Part 29 of Division 4 of Title 2, or**
813 **the agricultural career technical education incentive program pursuant to Article 7.5**
814 **(commencing with Section 52460) of Chapter 9 of Part 28 of Division 4 of Title 2.**

- 815 (ii) Contributions from industry, labor, and philanthropic sources.
816 (B) Make significant investments in career technical education infrastructure and
817 equipment.
818 (C) Operate within rural school districts.
819 (b) When determining grant recipients, the K-12 Selection Committee shall give greatest
820 weight to the applicant characteristics included in paragraph (1) of subdivision (a).
821

822 Section 88831 is added to the Education Code, to read:

823

824 88831. (a) A grant recipient for purposes of the K-12 component of the Strong Workforce
825 Program may consist of one or more, or any combination, of the following:

826 (1) School districts.

827 (2) County offices of education.

828 (3) Charter schools.

829 (4) Regional occupational centers or programs operated by a joint powers authority,
830 provided that the application has the written consent of each participating local
831 educational agency.

832 (b) Each consortium shall work with their K-14 Technical Assistance Provider to provide
833 notice to county offices of education, local educational agencies, middle schools, high
834 schools, and regional occupational centers and programs eligible for grants under this
835 section of the availability of contracts and grants and the process for submitting an
836 application.
837

838 Section 88832 is added to the Education Code, to read:

839

840 88832. (a) As a condition of receiving funds, grant recipients shall do the following:

841 (1) Certify to the K-12 Selection Committee that grant funds received and the
842 matching funds contributed by each local educational agency shall be used solely for the
843 purpose of supporting the program or programs for which the grant is awarded.

844 (2) Make expenditure data on career technical education programs available for
845 purposes of determining if the grant recipients have met the dollar-for-dollar match
846 requirement specified in subdivision (c) of Section 88828, and for monitoring the use of
847 funds provided pursuant to Section 88827.

848 (b) The Controller shall include the instructions necessary to enforce the requirements
849 pertaining to the K-12 component of the Strong Workforce Program in the audit guide
850 required by Section 14502.1.
851

852 Section 88833 is added to the Education Code, to read:

853

854 88833. (a)(1) Commencing with the 2018–19 fiscal year, the amount appropriated in the
855 annual Budget Act for support of the K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinators and the K-14
856 Technical Assistance Providers shall be used to establish a K-12 Workforce Pathway
857 Coordinator within the geographical boundaries of each community college district,
858 unless otherwise determined by the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the
859 Chancellor. K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinators shall be selected through a
860 competitive process jointly administered by the Superintendent of Public Instruction and
861 the Chancellor, and shall perform duties, including, but not limited to, all of the following:
862 (A) Provide technical assistance and support to local educational agencies in utilizing

863 their region’s plan developed pursuant to Section 88823 to inform local planning efforts
864 to implement career technical education courses, programs, and pathways and integrate
865 available local, regional, state, and nonpublic resources to ensure that pupils will achieve
866 successful workforce outcomes.

867 (B) Collaborate on behalf of the local educational agencies within the consortium,
868 including identifying and advocating for K-12 programmatic priorities. As part of this
869 duty, each K-12 Strong Workforce Pathway Coordinator shall stay current with the needs
870 of K-12 career technical education programs and their regional and local labor markets in
871 order to provide guidance, in collaboration with local educational agencies participating
872 in the consortium, to the chancellor’s office, the consortium, and industry
873 representatives.

874 (C) Act as first point of contact for local educational agencies, industry
875 representatives, and employers with the intent of assisting local educational agencies
876 respond to industry needs and facilitating industry connection with K-12 career technical
877 education programs.

878 (D) Cultivate collaborative communities so that local educational agencies, and
879 industry representatives can collaborate and provide peer-to-peer knowledge exchange
880 in areas of common interest to inform the development of high-quality education
881 programs. (E) Work in conjunction with the Deputy Sector Navigators to improve
882 linkages and alignment of career education pathways between middle schools, high
883 schools, public postsecondary institutions, and the workforce.

884 (2) Any individual associated with any of the following may apply to serve as a K-12
885 Workforce Pathway Coordinator, or subcontract with an individual with expertise in K-12
886 education and workforce development to serve as a K-12 Workforce Pathway
887 Coordinator:

888 (A) School districts.

889 (B) County offices of education.

890 (C) Charter schools.

891 (D) Regional occupational centers or programs operated by a joint powers authority. (3)
892 The Superintendent of Public Instruction and the Chancellor shall agree upon an
893 outcome-based assessment that allows for an evaluation of the K-12 Workforce
894 Pathway Coordinators’ ability to perform the duties identified in paragraph (1) of
895 subdivision (a) of this section. Data required for purposes of this evaluation shall be
896 submitted by the K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinators to the Superintendent of
897 Public Instruction and the Chancellor at least annually, commencing in the 2019-20
898 fiscal year.

899 (b)(1) Commencing with the 2018–19 fiscal year, the amount appropriated in the annual
900 Budget Act for support of the K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinators and the K-14
901 Technical Assistance Providers shall be used to support the activities of the K-14
902 Technical Assistance Providers established under the California Career Pathways Trust
903 Program (Chapter 433, Statutes of 2012). One K-14 Technical Assistance Provider shall
904 be selected for each consortium through a competitive process jointly administered by
905 the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the Chancellor, and shall perform duties,
906 including, but not limited to, all of the following:

907 (A) Provide leadership, guidance, and technical assistance to create, support, expand
908 and improve career technical education opportunities for local educational agencies. (B)
909 Act as a liaison between the consortium and the State Department of Education, and
910 serve as a consultant to the K-12 Selection Committee.

911 **(C) Interact with the K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinators and the Deputy Sector**
912 **Navigators to improve linkages and career education pathways between middle**
913 **schools, high schools, public postsecondary institutions, and the workforce.**
914 **(D) Identify professional development opportunities for the K-12 Workforce Pathway**
915 **Coordinators and educational entities, including educational leaders and counselors. (E)**
916 **Regularly facilitate convenings of K-12 Strong Workforce Program grantees to develop a**
917 **network of educators to share best practices and cultivate state resources that can be**
918 **used by agencies charged with providing assistance within the Statewide System of**
919 **Support authorized pursuant to Section 52059.5 of the Education Code.**
920 **(2) Any of the following may apply to serve as a K-14 Technical Assistance Provider, or**
921 **subcontract with an individual with expertise in K-12 education and workforce**
922 **development to serve as a K-14 Technical Assistance Provider:**
923 **(A) School districts.**
924 **(B) County offices of education.**
925 **(C) Charter schools.**
926 **(D) Regional occupational centers or programs operated by a joint powers authority.**
927 **(E) Community college districts.**
928 **(3) The Superintendent of Public Instruction and the Chancellor shall agree upon an**
929 **outcome-based assessment that allows for an evaluation of the K-14 Technical**
930 **Assistance Providers' ability to perform the duties identified in paragraph (1) of**
931 **subdivision (b) of this section. Data required for purposes of this evaluation shall be**
932 **submitted by the K-14 Technical Assistance Providers to the Superintendent of Public**
933 **Instruction and the Chancellor at least annually, commencing in the 2019-20 fiscal year.**
934 **(4) In selecting the K-14 Technical Assistance Providers, the Superintendent of Public**
935 **Instruction and the Chancellor shall give priority to applicants who served as a K-14**
936 **Technical Assistance Provider under the California Career Pathways Trust Program. (c)**
937 **To promote the successful transition to the K-12 Strong Workforce Program,**
938 **notwithstanding subdivisions (a) and (b), for the 2018-19 fiscal year only, the amount**
939 **appropriated in the annual Budget Act for support of the K-12 Workforce Pathway**
940 **Coordinators and the K-14 Technical Assistance Providers shall also be available for the**
941 **purposes of integrating the K-12 component into the regional consortia and hiring and**
942 **developing the K-12 Workforce Pathway Coordinators and K-14 Technical Assistance**
943 **Providers.**
944 **(d) Any funds not utilized for the purposes of subdivision (a), (b), or (c) shall be added to**
945 **the amount appropriated in the annual Budget Act for the K-12 component of the Strong**
946 **Workforce Program, and provided to each consortium to create, support, or expand**
947 **career technical education programs at the K-12 level that are aligned with the workforce**
948 **development efforts occurring through the Strong Workforce Program.**